
 
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 

601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 
 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor                        City Attorney 
Julie T. Martin, Mayor Pro Tem                      Brian D. Corry 
John A. Cason III, Commissioner                      
Felicia M. Harris, Commissioner                                                                                                                              City Manager 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner                Regina M. McDuffie 
                                                         
      

www.brunswickga.org  
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1.  Adoption of December 20, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Agenda.  
PUBLIC HEARING(S) – ALCOHOL LICENSE (A. Brown) 
2. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Name of 
Business 

Business Owner/Manager Business Address Permit Type 

SchroGlo Owner: Nikki Schroeder 
Manager: Madison Schroeder 

1305 Gloucester St.  On premise consumption of 
beer, wine and liquor. 

UPDATE 
3.  Idalia Expense Report.  (R. McDuffie) (Encl. 1) 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
4.  Consider Approval of December 6, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary  
      changes.)  (N. Atkinson) (Encl. 2) 
5.  Consider Approval of Renewal of Stop Loss Insurance Proposal.  (R. McDuffie) (Encl. 3) 
6.  Consider Approval for Tuesday, December 26, 2023 as an Additional Holiday for 2023.  (R. McDuffie) 
7.  Consider Approval Consider of Thirty-Three(33) Alcohol License Renewals; and One (1) Renewal with  
     Previous Violations.  (A. Brown) (Encl. 4) 
8.  Consider Approval of October 31, 2023 Financial Reports.  (K. Mills) (Encl. 5) 
9.  Consider Approval of Contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. for Landscape Maintenance Services at  
     City Parks and Public Areas along U.S. highway 17 Corridor.  (G. Alberson) (Encl. 6) 
 

http://www.brunswickga.org/
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


Page 2 
December 20, 2023 
Brunswick City Commission Agenda 
 
 
 
10.  Consider approval of Enterprise Zone Incentives for 1615 Reynolds Street.  (M. Hill) (Encl. 7) 
PRESENTATION(S) 
POINT OF PRIVILEGE  
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 



EXPENSE REPORT For Office Use Only

GENERAL INFORMATION

Purpose Statement Number

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Name Position EMA cooridnator 

Department Manager Tim White 

Date Department Description Cost Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Total

9/13/2023 HR Total earnings $253,281.00 $253,281.00

DDA ritz awning replacemt $3,899 $3,899.00

$0.00

8/30/2023 Community Services Food for Shelter $360 $360.00

$0.00

Fire department Training tower roof linging 5000 $5,000.00

$0.00

Public works Sandbag purchase 1800 $1,800.00

Public Works Debris Disposal Tickets 24,968.14 $24,968.14

PW truck usage vehicle used forfdebris collection 82,000 $82,000.00

Lissner House 2nd floor railing 3600 $3,600.00

Total $374,908.14 $374,908.14

$374,908.14

Comments $0.00

$374,908.14

Expense report esitmations 

Alec Eaton 

these number are an approximation and dats is currently being gathered for an excate 
amount for each line 

Fire Department 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2023 

AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:   Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro-Tem Julie Martin, Commissioner John Cason  

III, Commissioner Felicia Harris~(attended via zoom) and Commissioner Kendra Rolle 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson ~ meeting began at 6:00 p.m.                                  
INVOCATION:  Pastor Darrell Dawson, Bright Star Baptist Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Recited in unison by all in attendance. 
ADDENDUM TO AGENDA: 
Commissioner Rolle made a motion to defer item number three (3) and item number five (5): 
3) “Consider Approval of October 31, 2023 Financial Reports and 5)“Consider approval of Coastal Greenery, 
Inc. for landscape maintenance services at city parks and public areas along U.S. Highway 17 corridor; and  
move public comment after recognitions, presentations and awards; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1.  Adoption of December 6, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Agenda.  
     Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to adopt December 6, 2023 agenda with aforementioned  
     addendums; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously.  
PUBLIC COMMENT    

1)    Robert Griffin thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin and Commissioner Cason for their service. 
RECOGNITION(S), PRESENTATION(S), & AWARD(S) 

Tribute to Commissioner Julie Martin & Commissioner John Cason III for their service: 
Commissioner Rolle thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin and Commissioner Cason for their leadership and service 
to the City of Brunswick. 
Commissioner Harris thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin and Commissioner Cason for their leadership and 
service to the City of Brunswick and provided accolades to both. 
Commissioner-Elect Sabbe and Commissioner-Elect Atkinson-Williams thanked both Mayor Pro Tem Martin 
and Commissioner Cason for their service. 
City Manager McDuffie thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin and Commissioner Cason for their service to the City 
of Brunswick. 
Mike Martin, husband of Mayor Pro Tem Martin thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin for the example she has been 
for her family; he also thanked Commissioner Cason for his service. 
Jay Cason, son of Commissioner Cason thanked Commissioner Cason on behalf of the Cason family for his 
service and example; he also thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin for her service. 
Mayor Johnson thanked Mayor Pro Tem Martin and Commissioner Cason for their service and sacrifice to the 
City of Brunswick.  Mayor Johnson presented proclamation and plaque to Mayor Pro Tem Martin and 
Commissioner Cason. 
RECESS – 6:25 p.m. until 6:29 p.m. 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
2.  Consider Approval of November 15, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary  
      changes.)  (N. Atkinson)  

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

     Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve November 15, 2023 regular scheduled meeting minutes;  
     seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
3.  Consider Approval of October 31, 2023 Financial Reports.  (K. Mills) 
               ~The above-referenced items was deferred until the December 20, 2023 commission meeting.~ 
4.  Consider Approval Consider of Nine (9) Alcohol License Renewals; and Five (5) Renewal with  
     Previous Violations.  (A. Brown) (list attached) 
     Mayor Pro Tem Martin made motion to approve the nine (9) alcohol beverage license renewals (list  
     attached) and the five (5) renewal with violations; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed  
     unanimously.  
5.  Consider Approval of Contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. for Landscape Maintenance Services at  
     City Parks and Public Areas along U.S. highway 17 Corridor.  (G. Alberson) 
             ~The above-referenced items was deferred until the December 20, 2023 commission meeting.~ 
6.  Consider Approval of Glynn County and City of Brunswick Emergency Operation Plan.  (A. Eaton)  
     Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced plan; seconded by  
     Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 
7.  Consider Approval of Enterprise Zone Incentives for 1400-02 Newcastle Street.  (M. Hill)  
     Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced Enterprise Zone Incentives 
     for fees only; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 
8.  Consider Approval of Enterprise Zone Incentives for 1615 Reynolds Street.  (M. Hill) 
     Commissioner Cason made a motion to defer the above-referenced item until December 20, 2023        
     commission meeting, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
There was not an executive session held during this meeting. 

** 
Mayor Johnson announced that at the next meeting the commission will be bringing tax relief for property 
owner citizens before the commission. 

** 
 

Commissioner Cason made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Martin. Motion passed  
unanimously.  
 
MEETING AJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 
 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
 
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 















Alcohol License Renewals  
Name of Business Business 

Owner/Manager 
Business Address Permit Type 

Silver Bluff Owner: Christopher 
Moline; Manager: 
Allyson Moline 

1323 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Manufacture of Beer 

Red Carpet Lounge Owner: Scott Jackmore 300 F Street, Brunswick, 
GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Bottle time Owner: Shaili Dalal 1900 1st Street, 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail package sales of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Matted Ox Owner: Jason 
Kuykendall 

1510 Bay St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer and wine 

Bubba Garcia’s Owner: Connor Rankin 
and Allen Tullos 

201 Gloucester St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Pinball Palace Owner: Robert Daniel; 
Manager: Karen Daniel 

3303 Hopkins Ave., 
Brunswick GA 

On premise of beer and 
wine 

King and Prince 
Seafood 

Owner: Patricia Gilreath 1 King and Prince Blvd., 
Brunswick, GA 

Food prep. w/beer and wine 

LoLo Mart Owner: Nisha Patel; 
Manager: Pratikshaben 
Patel 

2722 Norwich St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Little Zooks Owner: Jennifer Beato 1503 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Discount Liquors Owner: Anish Patel 1507 Gloucester St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer, wine, 
and liquor 

Danny’s corner Owner: Dharmeshkumar 
Desai 

2432 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Schroeder’s Market Owner: Nikki 
Schroeder; Manager: 
Madison Schroeder 

203 Gloucester St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Parker’s Causeway Owner: Patrick Parker; 
Manager: Christy Kehler 

25 Torras Causeway, 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Friendly Express #54 Owner: David Turner; 
Manager: Cheryl Butler 

2401 Gloucester St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Friendly Express #70 Owner: David Turner; 
Manager: Cheryl Butler 

3319 Glynn Ave. 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Sunoco Food Mart Owner: Naraj Patel 4528 Altama Ave., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

1509 Restaurant Group Owner: Kori Mcgraw 
and Peter Gosden 

1509 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Elk’s Lodge Owner: Larry Westberry 1509 Union St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Jinright’s Seafood 
House 

Owner: Helen Jinright; 
Manager: Jennifer Lord 

2815 Glynn Ave., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Winn Dixie #0060 Manager: Dillon Worley 1919 Glynn Ave., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Richland Rum Distillery Owner: Erik Vonk; 
Manager: Rosemarie 
Vermeersch 

1406 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Manufacturer of beer, wine, 
and liquor 



Walmart Market #2840 Manager: Charles 
Fleming 

11 Glynn Plaza, 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Del Sur Café Owner: Alberto Llano; 
Manager: Hernan 
Stutzer 

2700 Parkwood Dr., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer and wine 

Arte Pizza Owner: Hugo Acero 710 Glynn Isles, 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer and wine 

Arte Pizza Owner: Hugo Acero 1518 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer and wine 

Target #2301 Manager: Joshua Collins 200 Glynn Isles, 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Fox’s Pizza Owner: Craig Poppell 1435 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer and wine 

Tropical Island Meat & 
Grocery 

Owner: Sunil Patel 2500 Norwich St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer only 

The Rose Vine Owner: Danielle Brazell 1602 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Downtown Grocery Owner: Swapnilkumar 
Patel 

1300 Gloucester St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Walgreens #10266 Manager: Salina 
McCrimon 

101 Torras Dr., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Walgreens #7848 Manager: Brittany 
Lochstampfor 

4575 Altama Ave., 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and 
wine 

Reid’s Apothecary Owner: Christopher 
Gantt 

1618 Newcastle St., 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

Previous Violation Renewals 
Island Jerk Shack Owner: George Morris 4420 Altama Ave. Ste 

30, Brunswick, GA 
On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and liquor 

 













Page | 1 

SUBJECT: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE OF CITY PARKS ALONG HIGHWAY 17 
CORRIDOR  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             December 6, 2023 

PURPOSE: 

Approval of a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. for landscape maintenance services at the city 
parks and public areas along the U.S. Highway 17 corridor 

HISTORY: 

Several of the parks and public rights-of-way along the U.S. Highway 17 corridor have been 
improved over the last few years in order to beautify the corridor and enhance the view for 
visitors and local citizens as they enter the city along Highway 17 and visit the city’s public 
parks. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

A request for proposals was published to solicit proposals for maintenance services.  The scope 
of the project includes Liberty Ship Park, Anchor monument, Overlook Park, Monument sign, 
Visitors’ Club, and City Hall / Joy Ringle Park, and Oak Grove Cemetery entrance.  The selected 
contractor will be responsible for all aspects of the maintenance of the squares including 
regularly-scheduled mowing and trimming, fertilization, pruning, irrigation, mulch, and other 
tasks.  

Three responses were received in response to the RFP.  One of the responses did not meet the 
minimum qualifications requested in the RFP.  The pricing of the other two proposal is: 

Coastal Greenery  $71,760 
Sea Island Landscape Services $74,520 

The proposal from Coastal Greenery met all the minimum requirements listed in the RFP and 
was the lower priced proposal.  Coastal Greenery also has a work history with the City of 
Brunswick as Coastal Greenery is currently maintaining the squares along Newcastle Street.  The 
service from Coastal Greenery for the squares has been excellent.  The Public Works department 
recommends moving forward with the Coastal Greenery proposal and agreement. 



Page | 2 

As part of the agreement for the landscaping services, the Public Works department will have 
selected staff members working closely with the contractor in order to learn more about plant 
care and some of the maintenance practices that are required at the City’s parks and squares.  
This will allow the staff members to gain valuable experience and knowledge so that the 
department will be better equipped to handle the landscape maintenance tasks in-house. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The costs of this landscape maintenance agreement will be paid through the General Fund 
budget.  Sufficient funds were budgeted in the FY 24 budget for this service. 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount of
$71,760 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17corridor.

2. Do not authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount
of $71,760 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17
corridor.

3. Take no action at this time.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount of 
$71,760 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17 corridor. 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Public Works 

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount of 
$71,760 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17 corridor. 

________________________________ 

City Manager

_11-28-2023___________ 

Date     

natkinson
Underline



Prepared for: City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Prepared by: Terry Godwin

Date: November 2, 2023



 

City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and Maintenance

Maintenance Proposal

Thank you for your interest in Coastal Greenery, Inc.  Over the past 29 years, we have been 
privileged to be a part of many clients’ mission to fulfill their individual landscape needs.  With 
this being said, I want you to feel confident in your decision to allow our team to serve you in 
this venture.  The Coastal Greenery Team possesses the education, training, and hands-on 
experience to manage your landscape with each service we offer.  Our team strongly believes that 
communicating with the client and educating the client are the keys to a great working 
relationship.   We want you to feel confident that our team’s number 1 goal is to provide you with 
the finest landscape services possible while working in the safest manner possible.   We are 
looking forward to building a lasting relationship with you as well as meeting all of your 
landscape needs. 

-Jeffrey Johns

Landscape Maintenance Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day 10/2/2023 12:00:00 AM , by and between: 

City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and Maintenance

525 Lakewood Ave.

Brunswick , Georgia 31520

(hereinafter referred to as "the Client") 

and

Coastal Greenery, Inc.

(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor")

NOW, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, the parties 
agree as follows:  The term of this Agreement shall commence on _December 1, 2023__, and 
shall continue until _November 30, 2024_ unless sooner terminated by either party with 30 
days written notice. Written notice of termination shall be addressed as follows:

Coastal Greenery Inc.
1242 Old Jesup Road

Brunswick, Georgia 31520



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Turf Healthcare Application #1

Turf areas will be treated with a Pre-emergent Herbicide to prevent weeds prior to their 
establishment.  Turf weeds (Winter) will be treated during the visit with a Post-emergent 
Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #2

Turf areas will be treated with a liquid Insecticide for control or emerging Spring insects.  Turf 
weeds will be spot treated during the visit with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best 
Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #3

Turf areas will be fertilized with a Nitrogen based granular fertilizer at a rate of One (1) Pound 
Nitrogen per Thousand (1,000) square feet.  Insects in turf will be treated with a granular 
insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be treated during the visit with a 
Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM).  
Fungicides may be required should pest occur, but are not included in the agreement.  Client will 
be notified and proposal with additional fees will be presented should fungicide be required.

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #4

Turf areas will be fertilized with a liquid Nitrogen based fertilizer.  Insects in turf will be treated 
with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be spot treated during 
the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest 
Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Turf Healthcare Application #5

Turf areas will be fertilized with a liquid turf fertilizer using minor nutrients for plant growth.    
Insects in turf will be treated with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf 
weeds will be spot treated during the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 3/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Turf Healthcare Application #6

Turf areas will be fertilized with a liquid Nitrogen based fertilizer.  Insects in turf will be treated 
with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be spot treated during 
the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest 
Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #7

Turf areas will be treated with a Pre-emergent Herbicide as to prevent weds prior to their 
establishment.  Turf weeds will be treated during the visit with a Post-emergent Herbicide 
following Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM).  Fungicides may be required 
should pest occur, but are not included in the agreement.  Client will be notified and proposal 
with additional fees will be presented should fungicide be required. 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Turf Healthcare Application #8

Turf areas will be winterized with a potash application for root growth.  Insects in turf will be 
treated with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be spot treated 
during the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated 
Pest Management (IPM).  Fungicides may be required should pest occur, but are not included in 
the agreement.  Client will be notified and proposal with additional fees will be presented should 
fungicide be required. 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #1

Evergreen plants/shrubbery will be fertilized with a nitrogen based granular fertilizer for plant 
growth promotion.  Trees and perennials/annuals are not included.

Note:  City Hall, Oak Grove Cemetery, Liberty Park, Visitor's Center and  Monument area  have 
specific area plant healthcare. 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 4/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #2

Evergreen plants/shrubbery will be treated with a liquid insecticide to control an over 
population of insects on plant material.  The best methods of Integrated Pest Management will 
be followed.  Trees and perennials/annuals are not included. 

Note:  City Hall, Oak Grove Cemetery, Liberty Park, Visitor's Center and  Monument area  have 
specific area plant healthcare.

Soil Test

In the month of December a soil test will be completed on your landscape. The soil will be sent 
to a certified lab to analyze proper fertilization and pest requirements for your landscape in the 
upcoming season. A copy of the results will be provided.

Water Management Services

Weathermatic SmartLink Water Management System: Coastal Greenery Inc. will install a 
Weathermatic SmartLink water and site management systems irrigation controller and weather 
sensor. This system will become property of the client. Included in the Weathermatic SmartLink 
Controller is a Total Equipment Protection Warranty which is an all-inclusive warranty that 
includes protection against lightening, theft or physical damage and provides a fixed cost of 
ownership. This warranty is valid as long as the client is a customer of Coastal Greenery Inc.

24 Hour System Management - Coastal Greenery Inc. will install a cellular Air Card and will 
monitor on a 24-hour basis and will contact the Client and/or Client Agent if there are any issues 
with water allocation. Coastal Greenery Inc. will program the system in a manner that promotes 
efficient use of water and healthy plant growth. Coastal Greenery Inc. retains ownership of the 
cellular communication equipment (Air Card). 

Quarterly Inspections- Coastal Greenery Inc. will check the client’s water system, quarterly 
using a SmartLink mobile inspection app. Every valve is opened, and the system is inspected 
thoroughly. At this time, Coastal Greenery Inc. will reset zone times according to seasonal 
changes. Coastal Greenery Inc. will provide the Client with photos documenting any major 
repair items needed and will note and report to client any symptoms of inadequate or excessive 
irrigation, drainage problems, etc

Annually - Coastal Greenery Inc. will recalibrate each zone following Cooperative Extension 
Service recommendations. 

Repairs or system service beyond the above scope will require a charge at an hourly rate per man 
plus materials. The client or client's agent will be notified, and approval given before repairs 
beyond the above scope are made. The Client understands that for Coastal Greenery Inc. 
to perform routine maintenance and repairs to the water system, it may be necessary to operate 
the system during Coastal Greenery Inc's. regular business hours. It is further acknowledged by 
Client that this is also the case when certain fertilizers and chemicals are applied. Coastal 
Greenery Inc. shall not be held liable for cleaning vehicles or any other items that get wet during 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 5/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

operation of the irrigation system.

Irrigation controllers: Oak Grove Cemetery entrance on little house, beds only. Liberty Park on 
block construct at base of bridge footing. Visitor's Center has controller on side of building. 
Monument sign area has controller on backside of monument. City Hall controller is shared with 
Newcastle Squares on corner of Newcastle and Gloucester.

Weekly Landscape Maintenance

Mowing, Edging and Trimming: All turf areas shall be mowed during the growing season not 
to exceed the specified number of visits per year.  During the dormant season, mowing will be 
done as needed. Clippings will be left on the lawn with no visible clumps remaining on the 
surface 24 hours after mowing. All hardscape areas (sidewalks, fences, driveways, parking areas) 
and softscape aras (tree rings, plant beds) will be edged with a steel blade edger, monofilament 
line trimmers and/or chemicals twice per month during the growing season.  Grass clippings will 
be blown from sidewalks, curbs, and roadways after mowing and/or trimming.  In periods of 
drought stress or dormancy, mowing, edging, and weedeating may be suspended. 

Pruning (Growing Season): Plants and shrubs will be pruned during the growing season as 
intended to remove new growth only and to maintain the intended shape of the plant.  Pruning is 
done by hand snips or powered sheers.  Tree pruning will be done once per year and is limited to 
branches below Seven (7) feet height.  Additional fees will apply to pruning of trees over Seven 
(7) feet height.  For safety, no trees will be pruned in or under utility lines.  Branches will be 
pruned just outside the branch collar. Pruning paint will not be applied. Sucker growth will be 
removed by hand from the base of trees. No herbicides will be used for this purpose. 

Pruning (Dormant Season): Pruning during the dormant season is intended to reshape, thin or 
invigorate plant material.  Evergreen hedges, hollies, roses, etc. will be hard pruned as needed.  
Crape Myrtles, if needed, will be pruned by only removing cross branches and seed heads.  
Perennials will be cut back to promote spring growth.  No guarantee that perennials will flush.  
Ornamental grasses such as Miscanthus, Muhly, and Pampas grass will be cut back to promote 
new growth.  This type of pruning will be done January- March.

Weed Control:  Weeds will be treated with post-emergent applications of herbicides in all plant 
beds or mulched areas using a target spray technique and/ or hand pulling. Weeds in hard 
surfaces (paved) areas will be controlled with line string trimmers or chemical treatments. 

Blowing:  Blowers are used to clean hard and soft surfaces of particle debris.  Any debris that 
will not be absorbed will be picked up. 

Spring Leaf Removal: Leaves on lawn areas, in shrubs, groundcovers and along curb lines will 
be picked up. During leaf drop all surfaces will be cleaned.  Disposal of debris and leaves will 
conform to the client’s desire. No on-site disposal will be done without prior approval.

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 6/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Palm Pruning

All Sabal (Cabbage) Palms and Washingtonia Palms over seven (7) feet in height will be trimmed 
once per year after seed heads have produced in the months of August and September. 
Trimming includes removal of seed heads, low hanging palm fronds and dead. Shucking of the 
tree bark will be completed at an additional charge if necessary. For safety, no palm trees will be 
pruned in or under utility lines. Palm trees with two (2) or more years of growth will require an 
additional upfront fee for pruning. Palms over twenty-two (22) feet in height will be an 
additional charge/fee.

Note: 81 palms counted as of 10/11/23.  (Liberty - 2, Anchor - 8, Overlook - 39, Monument - 9, 
Visitor's - 19, City Hall - 4.)

Spring Mulching  Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

All mulched areas shall be replenished with Wood Mulch at a depth not to exceed two (2) 
inches.  Spring mulch will be installed during the months of February/March/April.  Excess old 
mulch will not be removed.  If this is needed, additional fees may result.

Note:  

Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

Spring Pinestraw

All pinestraw areas shall be replenished with pinestraw at a depth not to exceed  two (2) 
inches.  Spring pinestraw will be installed during the months of February/March/April.  Excess 
old pinestraw will not be removed.  If this is needed, additional fees may result.

Note: Straw is for Visitor's Center and Oak Grove Cemetery beds.

Fall Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

All mulched areas shall be replenished with Wood Mulch at a depth not to exceed two (2) 
inches.  Fall mulch will be installed during the months of 
September/October/November.  Excess old mulch will not be removed.  If this is needed, 
additional fees may result.

Note:  

Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

Fall Pinestraw

All pinestraw areas shall be replenished with pinestraw at a depth not to exceed two (2) 
inches.  Fall pinestraw will be installed during the months of 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 7/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

September/October/November.  Excess old pinestraw will not be removed.  If this is needed, 
additional fees may result.

Note: Straw is for Visitor's Center and Oak Grove Cemetery beds.

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 8/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Agreement Terms and Conditions

I. CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY: 

A. Performance: The Contractor shall be responsible for the performance of all work 
agreed upon in accordance with the “Scope of Work” but shall not be responsible for any 
condition caused by an act of God i.e. tropical storms, hurricanes, or any unforeseen 
intervening factor which may arise during the term of this Agreement, or subsequent time 
thereafter. In the event that weather prevents work from being performed on any day or 
date agreed to in this Agreement, the Contractor will strive to perform the work as soon 
thereafter as the Contractor is reasonably able to perform. 

The Contractor reserves the right to amend this Agreement when the Scope of Work is 
affected by changes to any local, state, and/or federal law, regulation or ordinance that goes 
into effect after this Agreement is signed. 

The Contractor shall amend this Agreement, in writing, when any additions or deletions 
occur to the landscape and /or irrigation system within the Scope Of Work set forth within 
this Agreement. The Contractor will obtain written or verbal permission before performing 
any additional work outside the Scope of Work and the Contractor will invoice the Client 
accordingly. 

The Contractor will schedule the Scope of Work according to the requirements of the Client 
and will in no way interfere with the normal routine of the Clients tenants, visitors, and/or 
employees. 

B. Workforce: The Contractor shall assign a trained workforce with experience in the 
“Scope of Work” being provided. The workforce will be presentable and identifiable at all 
times. The workforce shall be competent, qualified, drug-free, and U.S. citizens or legally 
authorized to work in the United States. The Contractor reserves the right to hire qualified 
subcontractors to perform specialized functions or work requiring specialized equipment. 

C. Materials: All materials shall conform the bid specifications. The Contractor will meet 
and comply with all agricultural licensing and reporting requirements. The Contractor shall 
pay all sales taxes on materials where applicable. 

D. Licenses and Permits: The Contractor will maintain State of Georgia Level 1A Soil 
and Erosion Licenses as required by law, State of Georgia Category 24 Ornamental & Turf 
Pest Control Licenses as required by law, and state certification in CPR & First Aid from the 
American Red Cross. Furthermore, the Contractor will comply with all other licenses and 
permits required by county, state and federal governments whereas the Scope of Work 
necessitates. 

E. Insurances: The Contractor will maintain $2,000,000 General Liability Insurance and 
Full Workers Compensation Insurance on all workforce and any other insurance at the 
discretion of the Contractor or required by law. Additionally, the Contractor will require the 
same of any sub-contractor and will provide certificates of insurance upon Client request. 

F. Liability: It is understood and agreed that the Contractor is not liable for any damage 
of any kind that is not caused by the negligence of the Contractor, its agents, contractors, or 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 9/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

employees, including but not limited to: death or decline of plant material due to improper 
selection, placement, planting or maintenance before the time of this Agreement; damage 
due to improper irrigation components in existence at the time of this Agreement 
execution; exposed cables/wires or sprinkler components/lines normally found below the 
surface of the lawn; flooding, storm or wind damage; disease or damage to lawns or 
landscape plants caused by excessive irrigation or lack of water due to inoperative 
components provided it reported these to the Client, irrigation restrictions imposed by local 
water management authorities or civil authorities or lack of irrigation and/or coverage; 
damage caused by any item hidden in the landscape and not clearly guarded or marked; 
and damage due to vandalism. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein, Contractor shall at all times be liable for the negligence and willful misconduct of its 
agents, employees, representatives, and contractors.

G. Underground Utilities: The Contractor will notify the Georgia Utilities Protection 
Agency prior to any installation project for the purpose of marking underground public 
utilities. Every effort will be made to avoid damaging any underground utilities. The 
Contractor will not be held liable for damage to telephone, electric, gas or water lines if they 
are not located where marked. Furthermore, the Contractor will not be held liable for 
damage to invisible fencing, irrigation systems, cable, phone, or private utilities such as, but 
not limited to, lamppost and outdoor lighting lines if these are not properly marked. Fees to 
repair any damage will be the responsibility of the Client. Non-public utility lines may be 
marked by the Contractor who installed them. 

H. Invoicing: The Contractor will submit monthly invoices for work performed within the 
Scope of Work included in this Agreement. All work will be invoiced on a per agreement 
basis and are due Thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. 

Any services performed outside the Scope of Work specified in this Agreement will be 
approved, completed, and invoiced separately. All additional work performed will be 
invoiced and due upon receipt of the invoice. 

II. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY:

A. Utility Usage: The Client shall allow the Contractor, its agents and employees, the 
usage of the utilities on site if needed. Utilities used but not limited to: water and 
electricity. 

B. Payment:   Client will receive an invoice at the end of every month, for the upcoming 
month’s service to be performed and is due Thirty (30) days from the invoice date.  Any 
additional services outside of this Agreement approved by the client will be billed 
separately.  This payment plan is considered to be a “Balanced Billing Plan” and doesn’t 
necessarily reflect the amount of work performed during the month that it was invoiced.  
Should a cancellation of this Agreement occur a reconciliation of services rendered shall be 
provided and any services rendered and not paid shall be paid in full to the Contractor 
within Thirty (30) days of cancellation date.

The Client is considered delinquent if the payment has not reached the Contractor’s office 
by the due date on the invoice. If an invoice becomes forty-five (45) days past due, the 
Contractor reserves the right to suspend services immediately by giving written notice of 
action for nonpayment. After sixty-five (65) days past due, the Contractor will proceed with 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 10/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

legal action they deem necessary to collect the balance due on the Client’s account.  The 
Client will then be responsible for the balance on the account plus all expenses associated to
collections, but not limited to court filings and attorney fees.

C. Corrections: The Client shall give the Contractor at least thirty (30) days to correct 
any problem or defect discovered in the performance of the Scope of Work contained in this 
Agreement. The Contractor may provide compensation at its discretion if defects are not 
correctable to the satisfaction of the Client.

III. OTHER TERMS:

A. Renewal: This Agreement is good for three (3) consecutive years with all of its terms 
and conditions, unless other arrangements are stated.  A three percent (3%) annual pay 
increase will occur after the first 12 months and another after the first 24 months of this 
Agreement. 

B. Wind/Hurricane Damage: Damage to landscape caused by winds, tidal surges, and 
or flooding such as broken limbs, down trees, yard debris will be cleaned by Coastal 
Greenery at an additional cost to this Agreement. This work will be invoiced at an hourly 
rate plus debris hauling/waste removal fees.

C. Quoted Price: The quoted agreement price within this Agreement shall be valid for a 
period of thirty (30) days from the date submitted. 

D. Cancellation: This Agreement may be canceled by either party upon a thirty (30) day 
written notice. In the event this Maintenance Agreement is terminated within the first 12-
months of the Smart Water Management Upgrade, a balance of five hundred dollars 
($500.00) will become due and payable immediately. In the event of the maintenance 
termination, the property would retain the smart controller(s) and weather station(s) which 
will continue to function in the same intelligent way, yet no longer have the cloud-based 
software, data/reporting and remote connectivity capabilities.

E. Independent Contractor: It is the express intention of the parties that the 
Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venture or 
partner of  the Client. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 
creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Client and 
Contractor or any employee or agent of Contractor or for any other purpose. Contractor and 
its agents are not entitled to participate in any benefits that the Client provides for its 
employees. Contractor shall retain the right to provide similar services to other clients while
currently engaged in an Agreement with the Client. Because of the Contractor's 
independent contractor status, no tax withholding shall be made from the payments 
contemplated in this Agreement. Contractor is responsible for paying all state and federal 
taxes as required by law.

F. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Georgia.

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 11/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

IV. CONTRACT PRICING AND SIGNATURES:

Payments are to be made over 12 monthly installments.

AGREEMENT SUMMARY

SERVICES OCCURS PRICE

Turf Healthcare Application #1 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #2 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #3 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #4 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #5 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #6 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #7 1 $385.87

Turf Healthcare Application #8 1 $385.87

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #1 1 $226.78

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #2 1 $226.78

Soil Test 1 $181.10

Water Management Services 4 $4,742.68

Weekly Landscape Maintenance 52 $47,525.40

Palm Pruning 1 $3,565.71

Spring Mulching  Anchor Monument , Monument Sign 1 $5,300.55

Spring Pinestraw 1 $801.73

Fall Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign 1 $5,300.55

Fall Pinestraw 1 $801.76

TOTAL $71,760.00

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 12/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

INVOICE MONTH PRICE

December $5,980.00

January $5,980.00

February $5,980.00

March $5,980.00

April $5,980.00

May $5,980.00

June $5,980.00

July $5,980.00

August $5,980.00

September $5,980.00

October $5,980.00

November $5,980.00

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $71,760.00

Coastal Greenery, Inc. City of Brunswick Parks
Landscape and Maintenance

By By

Terry Godwin

11/2/2023Date Date

BILLING INFORMATION:

Name:

Title:

Email  Address:

Phone #:

Billing Address:

**All invoices are emailed unless specified**

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 13/13



12/12/2023


















	12.20.23 Agenda Packet
	Encl. 1 - Idalia Expense Report
	Encl. 2 - Minutes
	Encl. 3 - Stop Loss Renewal Proposal 2023
	Encl. 4 - Alcohol Licenses Renewals
	Encl. 5 - Financial Reports
	Encl. 6 - Landscape.Hwy 17 Corridor Maint.
	Encl. 7 - EZ 1615 Reynolds St.



